
            

 

Children and Young People's Scrutiny Panel 

 
THURSDAY, 27TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Allison, Brabazon, Christophides, Newton (Chair) and Stewart 

 
 
Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (Church of England representative),1 Catholic Diocese 

vacancy, Mr E. Reid (Parent Governor) and Mrs M. Ezeji (Parent Governor).  
 
AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business (late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 14 below). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interest are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 



 

2 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 

paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To note the terms of reference for the Panel. 

 
6. CABINET MEMBERS QUESTIONS - CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN    
 
 An opportunity for the Committee to question the Cabinet Member for Children, 

Councillor Ann Waters, on her portfolio. 
 

7. BUDGET MONITORING  (PAGES 7 - 16)  
 
 To consider relevant budget monitoring data for the service areas covered by the 

Panel.        
 

8. SCHOOL PLACES  (PAGES 17 - 36)  
 
 To consider issues relating to school places, including allocations, levels of demand 

and funding matters.  
 

9. ADOPTION SERVICE - UPDATE  (PAGES 37 - 48)  
 
 To report on developments within the adoption service. 

 
10. FOSTERING SERVICE - UPDATE  (PAGES 49 - 54)  
 
 To report on developments within the fostering service. 

 
11. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN  (PAGES 55 - 60)  
 
 To report on the placements of the borough’s looked after children and related costs.  

 
12. EARLY INTERVENTION:  (PAGES 61 - 64)  
 
 To report on work being carried in respect of early intervention. 

 
13. WORK PLAN  (PAGES 65 - 66)  
 
 To consider and approve the draft work plan for the Panel (attached). 

 
14. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 
David McNulty Robert Mack 



 

3 

Head of Local Democracy  
and Member Services  
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Senior Policy Officer 
Level 7 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel:  
Email:  
 
Tuesday, 18 September 2012 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

Report for: 
Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Panel – 
27 September 2012 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Terms of Reference  

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
Cllr Martin Newton 
Chair, Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel  
 

 

Lead Officer: 

 
Christine Piscina, Strategy Support Manager 
christine.piscina@haringey.gov.uk 
  

 

 
Ward(s) affected: 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1. In July 2010, the Council began a review of governance arrangements in Haringey.  

The review examined the function and operation of council meetings to ensure that 
local democratic structures: 

§ were responsive to local needs and concerns 
§ helped to develop civic engagement 
§ provided value for money for local residents. 

 
1.2. A key objective within the Governance Review was to examine the Overview and 

Scrutiny function and ensure that it assists Council in making important decisions and 
helps to develop policy in a useful and effective manner.  In light of this, a new 
structure for Overview & Scrutiny was developed.  

 
1.3. Within the new Overview & Scrutiny structure, there is one overarching Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and four scrutiny panels.   Panels will have responsibility for 
scrutinising their own discrete areas of work, which are: 

§ Children & Young People 
§ Communities 
§ Adults and Health 
§ Environment and Housing 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 
 

1.4. It is important to note that the panels do not have the legal capacity to discharge 
Overview and Scrutiny functions.  Recommendations made by the panels must 
therefore be approved by the main Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 

1.5. The Committee has determined the terms of reference of each Scrutiny Panel. If there 
is any overlap between the business of the Panels, it is the responsibility of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to resolve this issue. Areas which are not covered 
by the 4 Scrutiny Panels shall be the responsibility of the main Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  
 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
N/A 
 

3. Recommendations 
 
3.1. That the terms of reference for the Panel, as approved by the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on 23 July 2012, be noted.  
 

4. Other options considered 
N/A 
 

5. Scrutiny Panels 
 

5.1. Scrutiny panels are non-decision making bodies and the work programme and any 
subsequent reports and recommendations that each panel produces must be 
approved by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.   Such reports can then be referred 
to Cabinet or Council under agreed protocols.  There are generic terms of reference 
for all of the scrutiny panels. 
 

5.2. Terms of Reference for Scrutiny Panels 
 

Policy Development and Review  
 

5.2.1. Any Scrutiny Panels established by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may, 
in accordance with Part Two, Article 6.03 (b) of the constitution: 

 
i. Assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its budget and policy 

framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues; 
ii. Conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy 

issues and possible options; 
iii. Consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 

participation in the development of policy options; 
iv. Question members of the Cabinet and chief officers about their views on issues 

and proposals affecting the area; and 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

v. Liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether national, 
regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by 
collaborative working. 
 

Scrutiny 
 

5.2.2. Any Scrutiny Panels established by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may, 
in accordance with Part Two, Article 6.03 (c) of the constitution: 
 

i. Review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the Cabinet 
and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and over time; 

ii. Review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 
objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 

iii. Question members of the Cabinet and chief officers about their decisions and 
performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and targets 
over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects; 

iv. Make recommendations to the Cabinet or relevant nonexecutive Committee 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process; 

v. Review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and 
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the overview and 
scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and performance; and 

vi. Question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent). 
 

Approval of findings and recommendations 
 
5.2.3. Scrutiny Panels must refer their findings/recommendations to the main 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee for approval prior to referral to Cabinet or the 
Council as appropriate.  

 
Policy Areas 

 
5.2.4. The areas of policy for the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel are as 

follows;   
 
§ Looked after Children 
§ Fostering and adoption 
§ Education e.g. exam results & school improvements 
§ Youth offending 
§ Safeguarding  
§ Child poverty 
§ Effectiveness of partnership working 
 

5.3.  Membership of Panels 
 
5.3.1. As laid out in the Overview and Scrutiny Protocol and as agreed at Full Council 

on 16th July 2012 individual panels will be chaired by a Member of the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. The total membership of the panel will consist of between 3 
and 7 non executive members and be politically proportional as far as possible 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

(including the Chair), and that apart from the Chair, the other Panel members to 
be non-executive members. 
 

5.3.2. Each Scrutiny Panel is entitled to appoint up to three non-voting co-optees.  
The Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel membership, shall include the 
statutory education representatives of OSC. It is intended that the education 
representatives would also attend the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meetings where reports from a relevant Scrutiny Panel are considered. 
 

5.4. Cycle of meetings 
 
5.4.1. As per the Overview and Scrutiny Protocol, each of the scrutiny panels will 

meet five times per year, one of which will be a dedicated budget scrutiny 
meeting.   
 

6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 

6.1. There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this 
report.  Should any of the work undertaken by panels generate recommendations with 
financial implications, these will be highlighted at that time. 
 

7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications 
 

7.1. The Head of Legal Services has been consulted over these proposals and is satisfied 
that the establishment of Scrutiny Panels as set out in the report meets all legal 
requirements.  The inclusion of non-executive members who are not members of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee means that the Panels cannot discharge overview 
and scrutiny functions and must direct all their conclusions/findings/recommendations 
to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for approval. 
 

7.2. There are no other legal implications arising from this report. 
 

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1. Overview and scrutiny has a strong community engagement role and aims to 

regularly involve local residents in its work.  It is anticipated that the new structure will 
enable local residents to have greater involvement in the work of Scrutiny by making 
engagement a more integral part of the scrutiny process. 

 
8.2. Scrutiny promotes openness and transparency.  All meetings and documents are 

public and therefore open to local people. 
 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
9.1. N/A 

 
10. Policy Implication 

 

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

10.1. Scrutiny has a role in policy development and review across the Council and 
Partnership as well as to act as a direct link to the local community.    It is therefore 
anticipated that Overview and Scrutiny will, during the course of its work, make 
recommendations which will have an impact on Council and partnership policy. 
 

10.2. The work of both the main Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny 
Panels is intended to add value to the work of the Council and its partners.  It is not 
intended that the work of Scrutiny duplicates work being undertaken elsewhere. 
 

11. Use of Appendices 
N/A 
 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

 

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Appendix A – Scrutiny bodies: role and service areas. 

 
Scrutiny 
body  

Exec Lead Scrutiny role Policy service /areas covered 

Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Chair: 
Cllr Rice 
 
 

Cabinet 
Leader 
Cllr Goldberg 
Cllr Strickland 
 
Chief Executive 
 

§ Cabinet Q & A 
§ Scrutiny work 

programme 
§ Ratifying reports of 

Panels 
§ Budget Scrutiny 
§ Borough wide/cross 

cutting topics 
§ Call-in 
§ CCFA 
§ Updates on previous 

reviews 
§ Updates from scrutiny 

panels 

§ Corporate Policy & Strategy 
§ Council Budget 
§ Council performance 
§ Corporate property 
§ IT 
§ Customer Services 
§ Benefits 
§ Legal services 
§ Regeneration 
§ Employment/worklessness 
§ Voluntary sector 
§ Community cohesion 
§ Tottenham Regeneration Project 
§ St Ann’s redevelopment 
§ Partnership arrangements 

Adults and 
Health 
 
Chair: 
Cllr Adamou 
 

Cabinet 
Cllr Vanier 
Cllr Waters 
Directors: 
Mun Thong 
Phung 
Libby Blake 
Jeanelle de 
Gruchy 

§ Cabinet Q & A 
§ Performance 
§ Policy and strategy 
§ Budget scrutiny 
§ Updates on previous 

scrutiny reviews 
§ Substantial variations 

(health) 

§ Adult social care 
§ Public Health 
§ Link with CCG 
§ Health and Wellbeing Board 
§ Adult health services 
§ Children’s health services 
§ Transition 
§ Changes to service provision 
 

Children and 
Young 
People 
 
Chair: 
Cllr Newton 
 

Cabinet  
Cllr Waters 
Cllr Goldberg 
Cllr Strickland 
 
Directors: 
Libby Blake 

§ Cabinet Q & A 
§ Performance 
§ Policy and strategy 
§ Budget scrutiny 
§ Updates on previous 

scrutiny reviews 
 

§ Looked after Children 
§ Fostering and adoption 
§ Education e.g. exam results & school 

improvements 
§ Youth offending 
§ Safeguarding  
§ Child poverty 
§ Effectiveness of partnership working 

Environment 
And Housing 
Chair: 
 
Cllr 
McNamara 
 

Cabinet  
Cllr Goldberg 
Cllr Bevan 
Cllr Canver 
 
Directors: 
Mun Thong 
Phung 
Lyn Garner 

§ Cabinet Q & A 
§ Performance 
§ Policy and strategy 
§ Budget scrutiny 
§ Updates on previous 

scrutiny reviews 
 

§ Carbon reduction 
§ Recycling and waste management 
§ Highways 
§ Sustainable transport  
§ Parking 
§ Parks and Open spaces 
§ Planning & Licensing 
§ Enforcement 
§ Strategic housing policy, social 

housing, housing allocations. 

Communities 
 
Chair: 
Cllr Winskill 

Cabinet  
Cllr Watson 
Cllr Strickland  
 
Director/ACE: 
Stuart Young 
Lyn Garner 

§ Cabinet Q & A 
§ Performance 
§ Policy and strategy 
§ Budget scrutiny 
§ Updates on previous 

scrutiny reviews 

§ Crime and disorder 
§ Libraries 
§ Culture 
§ Leisure 
§ Equalities 
§ Domestic violence 
§ Area Forums and Committees  
 

 

Page 6



Agenda Item 7Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

Report for: 
Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Panel 
27 September 2012 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: School Admissions 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
 
Jan Doust,  Deputy Director,  Prevention and Early Interventoin  

 

Lead Officer: Jennifer Duxbury, Head of Admissions and School Organisation 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report:   for information 

 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
This report contains information which provides the outcomes of the admissions process in 
2012.   Particular focus is given to the following areas: 
 
Reception and Secondary:   

• Where allocations are;  

• Where the pressure/demand is; 

• Waiting Lists for each school;  

• Relationship with Free Schools; and  

• What is the Council doing to increase school places? 
 

Information is provided relating to pupils starting reception classes and secondary school 
in September 2012. 

 
2. Background information 
The local authority has a statutory duty to co-ordinate the admission processes for all 
pupils of statutory school age.  This report focuses on pupils entering school in to 
Reception (which is the academic year when they turn 5) and the transfer from year 6 in 
primary school to year 7 in secondary school. 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 17



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Pupils apply to their local authority for a school place listing 6 schools which can be 
located in the authority where they are resident or in any other authority in England.  The 
local authority has a duty to provide a school place for all its residents. 
 
3. Reception 2012 
3.1 Allocations  
The number of Reception offers made to each school in Haringey as at offer day (18 April 
2012) is shown in Appendix 1.  The information is broken down to show how many first, 
second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth preference offers were made to each school.   
 
The field entitled ‘allocations’ shows pupils who were offered a place at the school but did 
not list it on their application form.  Where we cannot offer any school listed on a form 
(because other pupils better meet the admission arrangements) then we ‘allocate’ the 
nearest school to the home address with an available place. 
 
As at offer day all infant and primary schools were full and 132 pupils were without the 
offer of a school place.  Additional classes were opened at Bounds Green, The Triangle, 
Earlsmead and Western Park and Hartsbrook E-ACT Free School.  This ensured that all 
Reception applicants received the offer of a place. 
 
Appendix 2 shows the number of pupils that applied for a place at each Haringey school.  
Parents/carers can list a maximum of 6 preferences on their application form. 
 
Appendix 3 shows the number of offers made to each school broken down to show the 
number of pupils offered under each admissions criterion. 

 
3.2 Where the pressure/demand is 
Detailed information about the demand for each ward in Haringey is given in the school 
place planning reports available at www.haringey.gov.uk/schoolplaceplanning  
 
Demand for primary places (particularly reception) has increased year on year since 
September 2002, driven by an increasing birth rate and inward mobility to the borough.  
Although we have an increasing demand across the borough, which has required open 
additional classes and permanently expand schools, we also have particular hotspots 
where demand significantly exceeds supply. The two areas we are predominately 
concentrating on are North Tottenham and Bounds Green.   
 
The highest number of pupils who applied on time but were not offered a school place live 
in Muswell Hill ward.  These pupils have all now been offered a school place.   
 
We continue to monitor the projected pupil numbers in all wards and additional classes will 
be needed in the future (plans are given below). 
 
3.3 Waiting Lists for each school  
If a pupil is not offered their first preference school, they are automatically added to the 
waiting list for any school they have listed higher than the one they have been offered.  

Page 18



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Therefore if they are offered their third preference school, they will be added to the waiting 
list for their first and second preference schools. 
 
Appendix 4 provides the number of children on the reception waiting list at each school.  
Each pupil on these lists will have an alternative offer. 
 
3.4 Relationship with Free Schools; 
In 2011 Eden Primary, a one form entry (30 places) free school with a Jewish ethos 
opened in Muswell Hill.  This helped to meet demand for primary places in this area.  
Hartsbrook E-ACT from School opened in September 2012 (further detail is given below).  
This school has ensured that we are able to meet demand for reception places in North 
Tottenham.   
 
Earlier this year the Secretary of State decided that a bid for another free school in 
Tottenham should proceed to the next stage of the application process.  The 4-19 all 
through school with 1570 places is proposed to open in September 2013.  While the 
proposal was developed jointly with AESE and the Harris Federation, the Harris 
Federation is no longer involved with the project.  No site has been identified and the 
funding agreement has not been signed.  Further assessment of the project will be 
undertaken by the DfE in October 2012. 
 
 
3.5 What is the Council doing to increase school places? 
Additional classes  
 
For September 2012 we opened additional reception classes at Bounds Green,  
Weston Park, Earlsmead and The Triangle, making a total of 120 additional places. 
 
Permanent classes 
The new free school, Hartsbrook E-ACT, opened in September 2012.  It is a two form 
entry (60 places) primary school.  This year they have taken a further form of entry (a total 
of 90 places) to meet local demand for school places.  In the future, further additional 
classes will be required in the north Tottenham area to ensure that we continue to be able 
to offer a place to all pupils. 
 
In March 2012, Cabinet agreed the permanent expansion of Welbourne Primary school in 
South Tottenham.  In July 2012, Cabinet agreed the permanent expansion of Belmont 
Infant and Junior Schools.  Both expansion projects will deliver the first reception class in 
2013 and will grow incrementally. 
 
New Schools 
It is the presumption that any new schools opening in the borough will be free schools or 
Academies.  As a local authority we cannot open free schools and we currently have no 
plans to open a bid for an Academy school in the borough. 
 

Page 19



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

The future 
The School Place Planning Report 2012 sets out pupil projections for forthcoming years.  
Officers continue to monitor pupil numbers and will put forward recommendations for any 
additional places in Cabinet reports later this academic year (2012/13).   
 
Officers will hold a Primary Place Planning Summit in November, bringing together  
headteachers, governors, officers and Academy and free school providers established in 
Haringey to discuss school place planning issues and allow the opportunity for all 
stakeholders to understand the challenges currently facing us and propose solutions. 
 
4) Secondary  
 
4.1 Allocations 
The information in appendix 5 shows the number of Secondary offers made to each school 
in Haringey as at offer day (1 March 2012).  The information is broken down to show how 
many first, second, third, fourth, fifth and sixth preference offers were made for each 
school.  The field entitled ‘allocations’ shows pupils who were offered a place at the school 
but did not list it on their application form.  Where we cannot offer any school listed on a 
form (because other pupils better meet the admission arrangements) then we ‘allocate’ the 
nearest school to the home address with an available place.  As at 1 March 2012 all pupils 
could be offered a place. 
 
Appendix 6 shows the number of pupils that applied for a place at each Haringey school in 
2010, 2011 and 2012.   
 
Appendix 7 shows the number of offers made to each school broken down to show the 
pupils of pupils offered under each admissions criterion. 
 
4.2 Where the pressure/demand is 
Alexandra Park, Fortismere, Gladesmore, Heartlands, Highgate Wood and Woodside 
schools received more applications than there were places available. 
 
4.3 Waiting Lists for each school  
The following schools have a waiting list.  The number of pupils on each list is given next 
to each school name.  All pupils on the waiting list have been offered an alternative school.  
This information is correct as at September 2012. 
 

Alexandra Park - 251 
Fortismere - 250 
Gladesmore - 182 
Heartlands - 188 
Highgate Wood - 110 
Park View - 8 
Woodside - 72 

 

Page 20



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

4.3 Relationship with Free Schools 
We do not currently have any secondary free schools;  however please refer to the 
information relating to the application that has been submitted by AESE for a through 
school to open in 2013. 
 
4.4 What is the Council doing to increase school places? 
No additional secondary school places are currently required, but we will continue to 
closely monitor the demand for and supply of secondary places so that we can react 
accordingly if this position changes. 
 
5.     Summary 
At primary level, we are now at or close to capacity in all reception classes (across all 
settings) and we have had to respond to rising demand in recent years through the 
permanent expansion of some of our schools and the provision of some bulge (one off) 
classes.  Free school provision by Eden and E-act has also provided additional reception 
and Year 1 places.  We continue to monitor demand for and supply of primary places as 
well as the future provision of further free school places to ensure that the number of 
school places that we have available year on year is not outstripped by demand.  Robust 
projections from the GLA’s DMAG unit that drive our place planning means that we remain 
confident that we can continue to plan to ensure sufficient places.   
 
In the short term (up to approximately 2016) we have enough secondary places to meet 
demand,  and we carrying out modelling to ensure that, in the future, we adjust the number 
of secondary places that we have available to match the larger cohorts that we know are 
working their way through primary schools and who will eventually work their way into our 
secondary schools 
 
6.  Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Reception Offers 2012 
Appendix 2 – Reception Preferences 2011 and 2012 
Appendix 3 – Reception Offers by Criterion 2012 
Appendix 4 – Reception Waiting Lists 2012 
Appendix 5 – Secondary Offers 2012 
Appendix 6 – Secondary Preferences 2010, 2011, 2012 
Appendix 7 – Secondary Offers by Criterion 2012 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
O
ff
e
rs
 t
o
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 a
t 
2
4
.2
.2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 2
0
1
2
 O
ff
e
rs
 a
s
 a
t 
o
ff
e
r 
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 1
8
th
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2

F
ir
s
t

S
e
c
o
n
d

T
h
ir
d

F
o
u
rt

h
F

if
th

S
ix

th
A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

A
le

x
a
n
d
ra

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
0

7
7

4
2

0
0

6
0

B
e
lm

o
n
t 
In

fa
n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
3

2
1

0
0

0
5
6

B
o
u
n
d
s
 G

re
e
n
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
0

5
4

0
0

1
0

6
0

B
ru

c
e
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
9

7
2

1
1

0
0

6
0

C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

4
6

7
0

4
1

2
0

6
0

C
h
e
s
tn

u
ts

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
9

7
4

0
0

0
0

6
0

C
o
ld

fa
ll 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

8
2

7
1

0
0

0
0

9
0

C
o
le

ra
in

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0

2
1

3
0

0
3
4

6
0

C
o
le

ri
d
g
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
1
4

5
1

0
0

0
0

1
2
0

C
ro

w
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
9

4
0

1
0

0
1
6

6
0

D
e
v
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
0

1
6

2
1

0
0

6
0

D
o
w

n
h
ill

s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
8

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
6
0

E
a
rl
h
a
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
6

3
8

1
2

0
0

6
0

E
a
rl
s
m

e
a
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
7

3
0

0
0

0
0

6
0

E
d
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

2
0

7
1

0
1

1
0

3
0

F
e
rr

y
 L

a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

H
ig

h
g
a
te

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
3

9
5

4
3

2
0

5
6

L
a
n
c
a
s
te

ri
a
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
3

5
0

0
0

0
0

5
8

L
e
a
 V

a
lle

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

6
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

6
1

L
o
rd

s
h
ip

 L
a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
8

1
1

2
2

1
0

2
6

9
0

M
u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

8
3

4
1

2
0

0
0

9
0

M
u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 P
ri
m

a
ry

5
4

3
3

0
0

0
0

6
0

N
ig

h
ti
n
g
a
le

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
8

3
1

1
2

0
2
5

6
0

N
o
e
l 
P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
8

7
3

1
1

0
0

6
0

N
o
rt

h
 H

a
rr

in
g
a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
9

7
4

0
0

0
0

6
0

O
u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 
M

u
s
w

e
ll 

R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
5

7
6

1
1

0
0

6
0

R
h
o
d
e
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

8
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

9
0

R
is

le
y
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

6
5

9
5

0
1

2
8

9
0

R
o
k
e
s
ly

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

6
2

1
6

8
3

1
0

0
9
0

S
e
v
e
n
 S

is
te

rs
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
2

2
1

0
0

0
1
5

6
0

S
o
u
th

 H
a
rr

in
g
a
y
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
2

7
1

0
0

0
0

6
0

S
t 
A

id
a
n
's

 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
t 
A

n
n
's

 C
o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
1

7
2

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
t 
F

ra
n
c
is

 d
e
 S

a
le

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

8
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

9
0

S
t 
Ig

n
a
ti
u
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
8

4
3

2
2

0
0

5
9

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
' C

o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
5

2
1

1
0

1
0

3
0

S
c
h
o
o
l

N
o
. 
o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 b
y
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
/a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

G
ra

n
d
 T

o
ta

l

Page 23



N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
O
ff
e
rs
 t
o
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 a
t 
2
4
.2
.2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

S
t 
J
o
h
n
 V

ia
n
n
e
y
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
t 
M

a
rt

in
 o

f 
P

o
rr

e
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 C

o
fE

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
4

5
1

0
0

0
0

6
0

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
7

2
1

0
0

0
0

6
0

S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
E

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 (
N

2
2
)

2
2

2
3

2
1

0
0

3
0

S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
o
fE

 V
A

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
(N

6
)

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
0

S
t 
P

a
u
l's

 a
n
d
 A

ll 
H

a
llo

w
s
 C

o
fE

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
4

5
1

0
0

0
0

6
0

S
t 
P

a
u
l's

 R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
3

5
2

0
0

0
0

3
0

S
t 
P

e
te

r-
in

-C
h
a
in

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
1

8
0

1
0

0
0

6
0

S
ta

m
fo

rd
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
4

2
0

0
0

0
4

3
0

S
tr

o
u
d
 G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
2

7
9

3
4

5
0

6
0

T
e
th

e
rd

o
w

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

6
0

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 C

o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
0

T
h
e
 W

ill
o
w

4
9

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
6
0

T
iv

e
rt

o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
9

2
1

1
0

0
7

6
0

W
e
lb

o
u
rn

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
2

4
2

1
1

0
0

6
0

W
e
s
t 
G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
2

4
1

2
1

0
0

3
0

W
e
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
9

0
1

0
0

0
0

3
0

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

2
5
3
8

2
4
6

1
0
5

4
4

2
8

1
4

1
3
5

3
1
1
0

Page 24



C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
2
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 2
0
1
1
-2
0
1
2
 E
n
tr
y

P
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 -
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
v
s
 P
re
f 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
a
s
 a
t 
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 1
7
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

A
le

x
a
n
d
ra

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
7

4
4

1
8

3
5

2
0

3
2

1
2

2
7

1
3

2
9

1
1

2
0

1
1
1

1
8
7

B
e
lm

o
n
t 
In

fa
n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

8
2

1
1
0

5
2

4
9

4
0

2
8

2
4

3
0

1
9

1
8

8
1
4

2
2
5

2
4
9

B
o
u
n
d
s
 G

re
e
n
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
4

7
1

4
7

5
9

4
2

2
8

2
2

2
4

1
2

1
5

1
0

1
8

1
8
7

2
1
5

B
ru

c
e
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
8

5
3

3
9

4
2

4
0

3
9

1
7

3
3

1
8

2
0

6
9

1
7
8

1
9
6

C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

4
3

4
8

2
3

2
9

2
6

3
6

3
0

3
0

2
3

3
6

1
6

3
8

1
6
1

2
1
7

C
h
e
s
tn

u
ts

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
0
2

7
5

6
9

8
0

5
4

7
6

2
5

4
5

2
6

2
1

6
1
6

2
8
2

3
1
3

C
o
ld

fa
ll 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
1
9

1
1
2

1
0
3

1
1
9

9
0

9
6

6
0

7
2

2
7

4
0

2
3

2
1

4
2
2

4
6
0

C
o
le

ra
in

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
2

2
3

1
7

2
5

1
4

1
5

1
2

1
3

3
8

1
4

1
0

8
2

9
4

C
o
le

ri
d
g
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0
1

1
8
2

1
2
2

1
2
7

9
9

1
1
0

7
2

7
2

4
1

5
3

3
4

4
3

5
6
9

5
8
7

C
ro

w
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
4

4
0

1
8

2
0

1
0

1
2

6
1
1

8
6

6
6

8
2

9
5

D
e
v
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
7

5
7

1
2

1
9

1
2

2
3

9
1
0

5
8

6
6

8
1

1
2
3

D
o
w

n
h
ill

s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
2

5
0

3
1

4
3

3
0

4
0

2
4

2
4

1
0

2
0

1
5

1
9

1
6
2

1
9
6

E
a
rl
h
a
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
7

5
2

1
8

8
2
4

2
4

1
5

1
8

1
1

1
0

1
2

1
7

1
1
7

1
2
9

E
a
rl
s
m

e
a
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
7

6
8

3
1

4
5

2
5

3
3

2
9

1
0

1
1

1
9

1
6

5
1
6
9

1
8
0

E
d
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

*
n
/a

3
1

n
/a

4
0

n
/a

2
5

n
/a

2
2

n
/a

1
5

n
/a

1
0

n
/a

1
4
3

F
e
rr

y
 L

a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
3

3
2

2
1
0

7
3

5
6

6
1
3

1
5

4
4

6
9

H
ig

h
g
a
te

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
0

3
9

4
1

4
7

4
6

3
6

4
9

3
5

5
0

3
9

4
5

4
5

2
7
1

2
4
1

L
a
n
c
a
s
te

ri
a
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
9

8
5

4
4

5
6

3
7

2
7

1
6

1
9

1
8

1
4

1
3

1
1

1
8
7

2
1
2

L
e
a
 V

a
lle

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

8
2

9
8

4
5

3
8

2
1

3
9

1
7

1
8

7
8

7
7

1
7
9

2
0
8

L
o
rd

s
h
ip

 L
a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

6
0

5
1

2
5

4
3

2
0

2
1

1
9

2
8

1
4

9
9

1
5

1
4
7

1
6
7

M
u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

7
0

9
4

3
8

3
2

2
3

2
9

1
8

3
0

1
7

1
4

1
1

1
2

1
7
7

2
1
1

M
u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 P
ri
m

a
ry

7
7

8
5

1
1
2

1
0
7

1
3
4

1
4
2

8
2

9
2

7
0

8
3

4
0

2
7

5
1
5

5
3
6

N
ig

h
ti
n
g
a
le

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
8

2
9

2
7

2
7

2
1

3
1

1
6

1
3

1
2

9
2

8
1
0
6

1
1
7

N
o
e
l 
P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
2

5
7

2
9

3
2

2
3

3
8

1
9

2
5

1
4

1
9

1
5

1
2

1
5
2

1
8
3

N
o
rt

h
 H

a
rr

in
g
a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
0

6
8

3
8

4
3

3
7

3
8

1
6

3
1

1
0

1
9

6
1
9

1
5
7

2
1
8

O
u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 
M

u
s
w

e
ll 

R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
1

4
9

3
1

2
9

2
2

2
6

2
8

2
4

1
0

2
3

1
6

1
5

1
4
8

1
6
6

R
h
o
d
e
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
1
0

1
3
5

8
3

1
0
7

6
0

7
4

6
1

5
4

3
4

3
8

2
7

2
5

3
7
5

4
3
3

R
is

le
y
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
1

6
7

2
4

4
9

2
9

2
9

2
0

1
7

1
3

1
3

1
2

1
7

1
4
9

1
9
2

R
o
k
e
s
ly

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

7
7

7
8

1
1
8

1
0
7

6
6

8
3

4
7

5
9

3
4

4
2

2
3

3
1

3
6
5

4
0
0

S
e
v
e
n
 S

is
te

rs
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
6

4
4

1
9

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
4

2
0

9
1
4

1
0

1
3

1
1
2

1
1
9

S
o
u
th

 H
a
rr

in
g
a
y
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

6
4

8
0

4
6

5
2

2
9

3
3

1
5

2
9

1
7

2
3

1
1

1
7

1
8
2

2
3
4

S
t 
A

id
a
n
's

 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
8

5
2

3
9

5
0

3
8

2
8

3
2

3
3

1
5

2
2

8
1
0

1
9
0

1
9
5

S
t 
A

n
n
's

 C
o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
1

2
2

3
8

2
7

2
5

3
0

1
5

2
0

6
1
2

7
1
1

1
1
2

1
2
2

S
t 
F

ra
n
c
is

 d
e
 S

a
le

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

9
8

1
0
6

5
2

5
0

2
1

2
2

7
1
4

3
9

9
5

1
9
0

2
0
6

S
t 
Ig

n
a
ti
u
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
3

4
9

3
6

4
8

3
7

3
0

1
3

1
3

9
1
1

6
6

1
4
4

1
5
7

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
' C

o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
8

3
2

3
5

2
6

2
5

2
4

2
1

3
3

1
2

1
5

1
0

1
6

1
3
1

1
4
6

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l

F
if
th

S
ix

th
G

ra
n
d
 T

o
ta

l

P
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

F
ir
s
t

S
e
c
o
n
d

T
h
ir
d

F
o
u
rt

h

Page 25



C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
2
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2

S
t 
J
o
h
n
 V

ia
n
n
e
y
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

4
9

4
2

2
6

2
3

1
9

2
4

1
5

1
0

9
9

3
5

1
2
1

1
1
3

S
t 
M

a
rt

in
 o

f 
P

o
rr

e
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
2

4
8

1
1

2
8

1
4

1
5

1
3

1
1

7
6

1
3

7
8

1
1
1

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 C

o
fE

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

6
2

6
4

2
0

2
9

1
9

2
2

1
3

1
8

1
3

1
0

1
4

1
3

1
4
1

1
5
6

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
1

6
4

4
1

3
7

2
0

2
3

1
3

1
5

4
7

6
3

1
3
5

1
4
9

S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
E

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 (
N

2
2
)

1
5

2
6

1
6

1
6

1
7

1
6

5
9

5
1
2

5
4

6
3

8
3

S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
o
fE

 V
A

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
(N

6
)

9
3

8
1

1
6

2
8

1
5

1
8

8
1
0

6
3

2
7

1
4
0

1
4
7

S
t 
P

a
u
l's

 a
n
d
 A

ll 
H

a
llo

w
s
 C

o
fE

 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

6
3

5
7

3
2

3
9

1
8

1
8

1
0

1
3

3
4

2
6

1
2
8

1
3
7

S
t 
P

a
u
l's

 R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0

3
7

1
7

2
7

1
2

1
7

1
6

9
4

1
0

7
6

7
6

1
0
6

S
t 
P

e
te

r-
in

-C
h
a
in

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l

5
4

5
9

2
6

3
1

1
4

1
8

8
1
9

1
0

1
5

4
8

1
1
6

1
5
0

S
ta

m
fo

rd
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
3

2
5

1
0

6
1
7

1
5

9
1
1

2
9

6
1
0

6
7

7
6

S
tr

o
u
d
 G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
0

3
4

8
1
6

2
0

2
0

1
2

1
5

1
4

1
3

1
9

1
8

1
0
3

1
1
6

T
e
th

e
rd

o
w

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
0
1

9
9

9
6

1
0
7

9
7

8
5

6
0

7
5

4
0

5
1

2
2

2
8

4
1
6

4
4
5

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 C

o
fE

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
5

3
5

1
3

1
3

1
1

9
6

6
3

7
2

1
1

6
0

8
1

T
h
e
 W

ill
o
w

4
4

5
6

2
3

2
0

8
2
0

1
6

6
6

6
1
2

8
1
0
9

1
1
6

T
iv

e
rt

o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

3
7

4
9

8
1
9

1
0

8
9

6
5

1
1

n
/a

6
6
9

9
9

W
e
lb

o
u
rn

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

6
7

5
8

2
0

3
7

1
6

2
3

8
1
2

9
8

9
1
0

1
2
9

1
4
8

W
e
s
t 
G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
2

2
3

2
9

2
5

2
1

2
5

2
7

2
7

2
0

2
6

1
7

2
3

1
3
6

1
4
9

W
e
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
0

5
1

7
1

6
1

6
1

8
4

3
5

5
0

3
6

2
9

1
7

2
1

2
7
0

2
9
6

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

2
9
5
2
3
2
7
6
2
0
0
7
2
2
9
4

1
6
7
3

1
8
7
6

1
1
7
4
1
3
7
6

8
0
8

1
0
0
3

6
2
5

7
6
9

9
2
3
9
1
0
5
9
4

* 
E

d
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
to

o
k
 i
ts

 f
ir
s
t 
re

c
e
p
ti
o
n
 c

la
s
s
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

th
a
t 
y
e
a
r.

Page 26



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 A
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 2
0
1
2
 –
 H
o
w
 o
ff
e
rs
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e

T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 t
h
is
 t
a
b
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 m
o
re
 o
n
 t
im
e
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
n
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 p
la
c
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 e
v
e
ry
 a
p
p
li
c
a
n
t 
w
h
o
 a
p
p
li
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 g
iv
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
s
 a
t 
1
8
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 w
il
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
f 
p
la
c
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
c
li
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
p
il
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.

D
is

ta
n
c
e
 o

f 
la

s
t 

c
h
ild

 o
ff
e
re

d

(s
tr

a
ig

h
t-

lin
e
, 

m
ile

s
)

A
le
x
a
n
d
ra

1
8
0

6
0

1
0

0
1
5

4
4

0
.9

4
9
7

B
e
lm
o
n
t 
In
fa
n
ts

2
4
1

5
6

2
1

0
2
7

2
6

0
.2

1
5
8

B
o
u
n
d
s
 G
re
e
n
 I
n
fa
n
t

2
0
7

6
0

0
0

1
2
4

3
5

0
.3

1
2

B
ru
c
e
 G
ro
v
e

1
8
9

6
0

0
0

0
2
3

3
7

1
.2

5
2
9

C
a
m
p
s
b
o
u
rn
e

2
1
4

6
0

0
0

0
2
9

3
1

0
.6

0
4
2

C
h
e
s
tn
u
ts

2
9
9

6
0

1
0

0
2
2

3
7

0
.3

2
8
7

C
o
ld
fa
ll
  

4
5
7

9
0

1
0

0
4
7

4
2

0
.3

5

C
o
le
ri
d
g
e
  

5
8
1

1
2
0

0
1

0
4
9

7
0

0
.3

5
2
1

D
o
w
n
h
il
ls

1
8
7

6
0

0
0

0
2
3

3
7

0
.8

0
4

D
e
v
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 H
il
l 

1
1
9

6
0

0
0

0
2
0

4
0

0
.7

7

E
a
rl
h
a
m

1
1
8

6
0

0
0

0
1
8

4
2

1
.9

5
2
2

E
a
rl
s
m
e
a
d

1
6
9

6
0

1
1

0
1
8

4
0

0
.6

9
6
6

F
e
rr
y
 L
a
n
e

6
7

3
0

0
0

0
1
8

1
2

0
.9

5
6
5

H
ig
h
g
a
te
  

2
4
0

5
6

0
0

0
1
7

3
9

0
.8

0
5
5

L
a
n
c
a
s
te
ri
a
n

1
9
5

5
8

1
0

0
3
7

2
0

0
.2

9
9
5

L
e
a
 V
a
ll
e
y
  

1
9
6

6
0

1
0

0
2
6

3
3

0
.2

3
7
4

M
u
lb
e
rr
y
 P
ri
m
a
ry

1
9
2

9
0

0
0

0
3
8

5
2

0
.4

1
8

M
u
s
w
e
ll
 H
il
l 
 

5
3
3

6
0

1
0

0
3
1

2
8

0
.2

4
4
3

N
o
e
l 
P
a
rk

1
7
3

6
0

0
0

0
2
2

3
8

0
.4

6
6
9

N
o
rt
h
 H
a
rr
in
g
a
y

2
1
2

6
0

3
0

0
2
6

3
1

0
.2

7
7
5

R
h
o
d
e
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e
  

4
2
6

9
0

2
0

0
3
3

5
5

0
.3

5
6
1

R
o
k
e
s
ly
 I
n
fa
n
ts

3
9
5

9
0

0
0

0
3
5

5
5

0
.4

2
9
5

S
o
u
th
 H
a
rr
in
g
a
y

2
2
6

6
0

1
0

0
3
0

2
9

0
.1

8
9
3

S
t 
A
id
a
n
's
  

1
9
4

3
0

1
1

0
1
3

1
5

0
.1

6
2
7

S
tr
o
u
d
 G
re
e
n

1
1
5

6
0

1
0

0
1
4

4
5

0
.2

7
7
5

T
e
th
e
rd
o
w
n
  

4
4
0

6
0

0
0

0
2
9

3
1

0
.2

4
7

W
e
lb
o
u
rn
e
 

1
3
7

6
0

1
0

0
2
6

3
3

0
.7

1
2
5

W
e
s
to
n
 P
a
rk
  

2
9
5

3
0

1
0

0
1
7

1
2

0
.1

5
2
7

W
e
s
t 
G
re
e
n
 

1
4
2

3
0

0
0

0
8

2
2

0
.6

7
5
7

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 2

0
1
2
 i
n
 a

n
y
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
lla

te
d
 b

e
fo

re
 l
e
tt
e
rs

 w
e
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 o

n
 1

4
th

 A
p
ri
l.
 T

h
e
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
a
b
s
 a

re
 a

s
 o

f 
1
7
.4

.2
0
1
2

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
if
fe

r 
to

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 a
b
o
v
e
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

c
e
s
 

o
ff
e
re

d

D
is

ta
n
c
e

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

S
E

N
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

L
o
o
k
e
d
-a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
o
c
ia

l 
o
r 

m
e
d
ic

a
l 
n
e
e
d

S
ib

lin
g
s

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



School Total

Alexandra Primary School 10

Belmont Infant School 56

Bounds Green Infant School 8

Bruce Grove Primary School 23

Campsbourne Infant School 4

Chestnuts Primary School 54

Coldfall Primary School 76

Coleraine Park Primary School - Closed 5

Coleridge Primary School 106

Crowland Primary School 4

Devonshire Hill Primary School 22

Downhills Primary School 16

Earlham Primary School 18

Earlsmead Primary School 13

Eden Primary 19

Ferry Lane Primary School 12

Highgate Primary School 15

Lancasterian Primary School 67

Lea Valley Primary School 71

Lordship Lane Primary School 24

Mulberry Primary School 33

Muswell Hill Primary 79

Nightingale Primary School 3

Noel Park Primary School 30

North Harringay Primary School 33

Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary School 10

Rhodes Avenue Primary School 81

Risley Avenue Primary School 23

Rokesly Infant School 28

Seven Sisters Primary School 4

South Harringay Infant School 53

St Aidan's Voluntary Controlled Primary School 39

St Ann's CofE Primary School 13

St Francis de Sales RC Infant School 33

St Ignatius RC Primary School 14

St James' CofE Primary School 30

St John Vianney RC Primary School 30

St Martin of Porres RC Primary School 33

St Mary's CofE Infant School 11

St Mary's RC Infant School 14

St Michael's CE Primary (N22) 13

St Michael's CofE VA Primary School (N6) 30

St Paul's and All Hallows CofE Infant School 20

St Paul's RC Primary School 30

St Peter-in-Chains RC Infant School 16

Stamford Hill Primary School 7

Tetherdown Primary School 84

The Green CofE Primary School 16

The Willow 15

Tiverton Primary School 2

Welbourne Primary School 18

West Green Primary School 20

Weston Park Primary School 26

Grand Total 1514

Page 29



Appendix 4

Page 30



N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
O
ff
e
rs
 t
o
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 a
t 
2
4
.2
.2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5

F
IR

S
T

S
E
C
O
N
D

T
H
IR

D
F
O
U
R
T
H

F
IF
T
H

S
IX
T
H

L
A
T
E
 1

L
A
T
E
 2

L
A
T
E
 3

L
A
T
E
 4

L
A
T
E
 5

A
L
L
O
C
A
T
IO

N

A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
rk
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
7
4

2
3

1
1

4
3

1
2
1
6

F
o
rt
is
m
e
re
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
9
9

2
9

1
3

2
2
4
3

G
la
d
e
s
m
o
re
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
0
0

2
0

1
3

8
2

2
4
3

G
re
ig
 C

it
y
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y

8
5

3
0

2
3

9
4

3
1

2
1

1
5
8

H
e
a
rt
la
n
d
s
 H

ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
3
9

2
4

1
7

6
3

1
8
9

H
ig
h
g
a
te
 W

o
o
d
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
8
8

3
2

1
1

8
4

2
4
3

H
o
rn
s
e
y
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
r 
G
ir
ls

9
6

1
8

1
3

1
1

4
3

3
2

2
1
8

1
7
0

N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
1
5

1
3

6
6

4
2

1
0

1
1

4
6

2
0
4

P
a
rk
 V
ie
w

1
0
7

2
0

1
3

4
7

2
6

1
2

2
5
2

2
1
6

S
t 
T
h
o
m
a
s
 M

o
re
 C

a
th
o
lic
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
5

8
4

1
1

1
1

3
1

T
h
e
 J
o
h
n
 L
o
u
g
h
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
2

3
1

1
6

W
o
o
d
s
id
e
 H

ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

1
1
3

3
0

1
1

4
3

1
1
6
2

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

1
4
4
3

2
5
0

1
3
5

6
2

3
6

9
2
3

5
4

5
3

1
1
6

2
0
9
1

N
o
. 
o
f 
o
ff
e
rs
 b
y
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
/a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

Page 31



C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
2
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
rk
 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
5
6

2
3
3

2
7
7

3
9
6

4
4
3

3
7
3

3
3
2

3
1
2

3
2
1

1
8
8

1
9
1

1
9
3

1
1
1

1
0
3

1
1
3

5
9

6
6

6
5

1
3
4
2

1
3
4
8

F
o
rt
is
m
e
re
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

3
1
8

3
6
2

2
9
1

3
2
0

3
2
7

3
4
1

2
4
7

2
7
1

2
4
6

1
3
7

1
4
8

1
6
5

8
3

9
9

1
0
1

5
1

5
4

6
0

1
1
5
6

1
2
6
1

G
la
d
e
s
m
o
re
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y

2
8
6

2
8
1

2
9
9

1
6
0

1
8
4

1
7
2

1
2
8

1
1
2

1
2
9

8
3

8
8

7
6

4
8

4
5

4
4

4
3

4
8

6
0

7
4
8

7
5
8

G
re
ig
 C

it
y
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y

1
1
0

1
1
5

8
8

9
4

9
9

8
1

6
6

8
9

8
8

8
1

6
7

5
7

5
4

5
4

5
4

3
3

4
7

4
4

4
3
8

4
7
1

H
e
a
rt
la
n
d
s
 H

ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

2
1
1

2
2
4

2
1
8

2
0
6

2
0
5

2
4
3

1
2
0

1
5
7

1
9
2

9
3

1
4
4

1
4
0

6
3

1
0
0

1
1
4

4
5

5
8

5
6

7
3
8

8
8
8

H
ig
h
g
a
te
 W

o
o
d

2
5
2

2
3
4

2
4
2

1
9
5

1
6
9

1
6
5

2
2
9

2
3
4

1
8
4

1
5
4

1
5
8

1
5
4

9
2

1
1
3

1
0
5

7
3

7
9

6
6

9
9
5

9
8
7

H
o
rn
s
e
y
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
r 
G
ir
ls

1
3
5

1
3
4

9
9

1
1
2

1
1
2

7
3

1
0
7

1
0
6

7
9

7
3

6
7

7
7

5
8

7
0

5
2

3
2

4
3

4
2

5
1
7

5
3
2

N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk

1
5
3

1
1
7

1
2
5

8
3

8
0

6
6

7
0

5
4

5
9

4
0

4
0

4
4

3
3

3
6

2
3

2
8

3
6

3
2

4
0
7

3
6
3

P
a
rk
 V
ie
w
 

1
3
2

1
3
8

1
1
3

1
4
0

1
0
2

1
2
0

1
1
5

9
5

1
0
2

6
3

6
6

6
2

5
4

5
8

4
1

4
7

3
7

4
4

5
5
1

4
9
6

S
t 
T
h
o
m
a
s
 M

o
re
 C

a
th
o
lic
 S
c
h
o
o
l
2
2

2
8

1
7

4
8

2
4

2
9

6
0

3
1

3
1

3
1

3
4

1
7

2
7

2
6

2
2

3
2

2
7

1
9

2
2
0

1
7
0

T
h
e
 J
o
h
n
 L
o
u
g
h
b
o
ro
u
g
h

1
3

1
9

1
2

1
0

1
3

1
6

1
9

1
3

8
1
6

1
4

1
4

1
2

1
2

9
1
3

1
6

6
8
3

8
7

W
o
o
d
s
id
e
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l

5
4

7
7

1
2
8

5
7

6
6

1
0
5

7
9

8
0

9
3

6
9

6
3

6
6

4
9

4
4

7
2

4
1

4
3

4
6

3
4
9

3
7
3

G
ra
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

1
9
4
2

1
9
6
2

1
9
0
9

1
8
2
1

1
8
2
4

1
7
8
4

1
5
7
2

1
5
5
4

1
5
3
2

1
0
2
8

1
0
8
0

1
0
6
6

6
8
4

7
6
0

7
5
0

4
9
7

5
5
4

5
4
1

7
5
4
4

7
7
3
4

2
0
1
0
 d
a
ta
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 2
3
rd
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1
 d
a
ta
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 2
3
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2
 d
a
ta
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 2
4
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
2

S
c
h
o
o
l

F
ir
s
t

S
e
c
o
n
d

T
h
ir
d

F
o
u
rt
h

F
if
th

S
ix
th

T
o
ta
l 
P
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s

Page 32



C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
2
0
1
0
-2
0
1
2
)

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

2
0
1
2

1
3
4
2

1
2
0
4

7
8
0

4
1
2

9
6
3

9
1
6

4
2
2

3
4
9

4
8
2

1
3
5

6
5

5
1
0

7
5
8
2

T
o
ta
l 
P
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s

Page 33



Appendix 7

Secondary Transfer 2012 – How offers were made

Alexandra Park 

School 1341 216 8 1 0 72

Fortismere School* 1205 243 9 0 0 104

Gladesmore 

Community School 780 243 9 2 0 70

Heartlands  High 

School 962 **189 10 1 0 17

Highgate Wood 

School 920 243 8 1 0 77

Woodside

High School

* 22 pupils were offered places at Fortismere School based on musical aptitude.

** Please note an additional 27 places were offered above the published admission number 

Places could be offered to every applicant who applied to the remaining schools

Exceptional 

social or 

medical 

need Siblings

Number of 

applications 

received

Number 

of places 

offered

Children 

with SEN 

statements

The schools in this table received more applications than places available and this means places could not be 

offered to every applicant who applied.  The table gives information about the offers as at 1 March 2012 under 

the oversubscription criteria. These figures will change if places are declined and then offered to other pupils 

from the waiting list.

0 32508 162 3 0

Looked-

after 

children

Page 34



Appendix 7

Distance of last 

child offered
(straight-line, 

miles)

135 0.9208

108 0.5232

162 0.9328

161 1.124

157 1.0157

Please note an additional 27 places were offered above the published admission number 

Distance

The schools in this table received more applications than places available and this means places could not be 

offered to every applicant who applied.  The table gives information about the offers as at 1 March 2012 under 

the oversubscription criteria. These figures will change if places are declined and then offered to other pupils 

127 1.7867

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Report for: 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel  
27th September 2012 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Adoption Service – update  

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

Libby Blake -  Director Of Children and Young People’s Service 

 

Lead Officer: Wendy Tomlinson Head of Service Commissioning and Placements 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: all 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
 

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

      The improvement of the Adoption Service; timeliness of decision making and   
 planning for children in care for whom adoption is the plan. 

 
 

2. Background information 
 

2.1  The Government Adoption Action Plan was published in March 2012. This arose 
 out of a national reduction in the numbers of children being adopted and a notable 
 variation in performance on adoption between different local authorities.  
  The Adoption Action Plan introduced a number of planned regulatory changes 
 intended to speed up the process of placing children for adoption and in the 
 recruitment, preparation, assessment and support of prospective adopters.  The 
 Adoption Scorecard was subsequently published which gave comparative data  
 and introduced key indicators by which the performance of local authorities would 
 be measured.  

 
These are (children): 

•  The average time between a child entering care and moving in with its adoptive 
family.  

Agenda Item 9Page 37



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

• The average time between a local authority receiving court authority to place a 
child and the local authority deciding on a match to an adoptive family. 

• Children who wait less than 21 months between entering care and moving in 
with their adoptive family. 

 
The number of older children and the number of black and ethnic minority children 
being adopted are also scrutinised. 
 
The Scorecard also measures (Prospective Adopters): 
 

• The time taken from registration of interest to decision of suitability to adopt. 

• The time taken from receipt of application to suitability to adopt. 

• The time taken from decision to approve adopters to matching with them with a 
child. 

 
2.2 Where appropriate, and in the interests of children, the government intends to use 
 statutory improvement notices to require local authorities to take specific action to 
 improve their performance within set timescales. 
  
 A diagnostic assessment was developed to support local authorities to explore 
 how delays can be minimised for children whose best interests for permanence are 
 met through adoption. 
  
 Haringey Council was offered the opportunity to be part of the Children’s 
 Improvement Board initiative because of the timescales between children 
 becoming looked after and their placement in adoptive homes are significantly 
 higher than in comparable local authorities. 
  
 The Haringey diagnostic assessment was undertaken between the 25th and 27th 
 June, 2012. 

 
 
2.3  The Adoption Service, in conjunction with the Children in Care Service, has 

 implemented a number of measures to address the issues arising out of the 
 Haringey Adoption Scorecard position. There is a strategic and operational focus  on 
moving children into adoption placement in a timely fashion which involves an 
 organisational cultural change of systematic and whole system focus on 
 minimisation of delay at every stage of the making and implementation of adoption 
 plans.  

 
 
2.4 An Adoption Improvement (Monitoring) Service Plan has been produced to provide 
 a framework for management leadership and oversight of the improvement 
 programme (See Appendix 1). 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 The key measures are described below. 
 

• Introduction of the Permanency policy and procedures to speed up the process 
by which adoption plans are made are executed for children. 

• A specialist social worker has been recruited to focus exclusively on family 
finding and executing adoption placements. 

• Introduction of the Adoption Service linking meeting which promotes early 
matches between children on referral, Haringey approved families and those in 
assessment, as well as families referred to the service from other agencies. 
Timescales are identified and provisional bookings made for presentation to the 
adoption panel. The aim is to achieve a match prior to the placement order. 
Monitoring of process is presented to the fortnightly permanency tracking 
meetings. 

• Profile, photograph and DVD completed on all children for whom we do not have 
in-house matches. 

• The increased use of a wide range of family finding initiatives, including 
exploration with voluntary adoption agencies, adoption consortium partners, 
websites, adoption exchange days, distribution of children’s profiles to every 
adoption agency in the country on a monthly basis and specific cultural and 
community events/press. A budget has been made available to facilitate 
increased use of inter-agency placements. 

• Management information systems to track progress and increase accountability. 

• Permission of the court sought to explore family finding with adoption agencies 
prior to care and placement order. 

• Target of three months from placement order for adoption matches to be 
achieved, where no placement has been identified prior to placement order. A 
review to be chaired by the independent reviewing officer at the 3 month point 
and if no match has been identified further actions are to be identified and 
reviewed by the social work team at a minimum of monthly intervals. 

• Children’s advertisements uploaded within a maximum of 4 weeks of the 
placement order being made.  

 
   
 Actions to Strengthen Monitoring. 
 

• The IRO Service to undertake an audit, led by Rachel Oakley, by 1st October 
2012, of all children subject to placement orders. 

• Formulae for spreadsheets to be devised, and investigation of framework I in 
being able to run appropriate reports for monitoring. 

• Court team to start to prepare reports for adoption within 2 months of child 
entering care as parallel planning.  

• Reorganisation of permanency tracking sheets to enable us to have an at a 
glance reference to progress, to identify difficulties and to agree corrective 
action.  

Page 39



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

• Summary of progress on matches achieved, adoption and special guardianship 
orders completed to be presented to the permanency tracking meeting by the 
adoption service. 

• Forty eight hour commitment to consideration of prospective adopters by placing 
social workers. 

• Matches to be heard at the Adoption Panel within 4 weeks of matching meeting.  
 
 
 Prospective Adopters. 
 

• Management of the initial screening, preparation and assessment process to 
ensure completion within statutory timescales. 

• Adoption Panel dates booked at commencement of assessment. 

• Pool of adopters increased to promote early matches. 
 
 
3. Progress to date  
 
3.1 There has been progress in the placement of children for adoption. 11 children 
 have been placed to date and there are matches with a further 17 children in 
 progress. A further 7 children are having families explored in respect of  them. 
 This is already an improvement on 2011 – 12 where 16 children were placed 
 for adoption in total.  
  
 It is acknowledged that a number of children from whom placements have now 
 been identified have had adoption plans for some time, which will negatively 
 impact on scorecard performance. However this will be counter balanced by the 
 early placement of very young children and relinquished babies; as well as the 
 targeted placement measures introduced. 
  
 There have been 9 adoption orders to date this year, and 14 special guardianship 
 orders. The Service is therefore on track to achieve the target of 15 adoption 
 orders and 20 special guardianship orders.  
  
 There are 15 prospective adopters being assessed, which is already higher than 
 those approved in 2011 – 12, which was 11. The preparation group being held at 
 this time has a further 10 sets of applicants. A further preparation group is planned 
 for November 2012. 

 
 

4.  Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Adoption Service Improvement plan – update.  
Appendix 2 Adoption Scorecard 

Page 40



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
. 
U
P
D
A
T
E
D
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
  

T
a
s
k
s
  

U
P
D
A
T
E
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

le
a
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
 

1
. 
T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
d
o
p
te
rs
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

 T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 

p
o
o
l 
o
f 
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
0
 n
e
w
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 

re
c
ru
it
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

   

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
, 
d
e
p
lo
y
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 

  •
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 m
o
n
th
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r.
  

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

        •
 
A
lt
e
rn
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

e
v
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 m

o
rn
in
g
. 
 

•
 
O
ff
e
r 
4
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
 y
e
a
r 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 

th
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
. 

•
 
F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
t’
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
’ 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
d
e
la
y
. 
 

•
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 8
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

•
 
T
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

 •
 
In
 p
la
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

in
it
ia
l 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

fo
rm

a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
v
is
it
 

fo
rm

a
t.
 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

fo
rm

a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
. 
 

•
 
In
 p
la
c
e
 

  
§
 
In
  
p
la
c
e
 

  
 

 
 

§
 
In
 p
la
c
e
. 

  §
 
In
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

•
 
L
e
s
le
y
 

K
e
tt
le
s
  

 

2
. 
T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 
 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 p
o
o
l 
o
f 
in
 h
o
u
s
e
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

•
 
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 l
in
k
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
m
a
tc
h
e
s
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

e
ff
e
c
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
rd
e
r 
is
 

§
 
T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
. 

   

* 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

* 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

 

Page 41



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
5
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
rd
e
rs
 

2
0
1
2
 -
 2
0
1
3
 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
 m
o
n
th
s
 f
ro
m
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
a
tc
h
. 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
  

  
 

 N
e
w
 F
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 

   

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 I
R
O
 w
h
e
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 3
 m
o
n
th
s
 p
o
s
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

o
rd
e
r.
 

•
 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 f
in
d
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ta
s
k
s
. 
 

 •
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 P
ro
fi
le
s
 B
o
o
k
 t
o
 

e
v
e
ry
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 

b
a
s
is
. 

•
 
A
g
re
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
p
ro
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 t
o
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 f
o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 

w
id
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
o
l 
o
f 
in
te
re
s
t.
  

 

•
 
E
m
p
lo
y
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
fa
m
ily
 f
in
d
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r 
to
 

m
o
v
e
 a
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
1
5
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
to
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
o
rk
e
r 
to
 b
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 s
ix
 m

o
n
th
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1

s
t  
J
u
ly
. 
 

  

 T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

d
ra
ft
e
d
 f
o
r 
E
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
M
in
u
te
s
 t
o
 g
o
 t
o
 S
L
T
 

fo
r 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
/ 
o
v
e
rs
ig
h
t.
 

 B
y
 e
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

  B
y
 e
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

  T
h
is
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

  T
h
is
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
. 
 

  T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 b
y
 

E
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 t
o
 

S
L
T
 

 * 
 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

A
N
D
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 

in
 C
a
re
 C
a
re
 

C
h
a
lm
e
rs
. 

 * 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
Q
A
 

* 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 (
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
) 

L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

 

•
 
L
e
s
le
y
 

K
e
tt
le
s
 

3
. 
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 

•
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m
 d
a
y
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 

•
 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p
la
n
s
 w
it
h
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
. 
 

•
 
W
o
rk
 f
lo
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
 

•
 
T
w
ic
e
 y
e
a
rl
y
 f
o
rm

a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

   T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
s
 

e
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 

* 
  
L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
. 

  * 
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

 

Page 42



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
w
ic
e
 y
e
a
rl
y
 f
o
rm

a
l 
fi
le
 a
u
d
it
s
. 
J
u
n
e
 a
n
d
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r.
 

 

•
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
fi
le
 a
u
d
it
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

       

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
Q
A
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
b
y
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 In
 P
la
c
e
 –
 f
ir
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
 o
f 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 t
o
 D
M
G
 b
y
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 * 
  
L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

a
n
d
 R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

W
e
n
d
y
 

T
o
m
lin
s
o
n
 

T
e
a
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

4
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
h
ip
. 
  

T
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
2
0
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
h
ip
 o
rd
e
rs
 2
0
1
2
 -
 

2
0
1
3
 

          5
. 
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 f
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

•
 
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
e
re
 S
G
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 T
ra
c
k
in
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
h
ic
h
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
. 
 

•
 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 T
e
a
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
h
u
s
 

m
in
im
is
in
g
 a
n
y
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
la
n
s
. 

•
 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
G
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
h
ip
 P
o
lic
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

•
 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

to
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 
 

      

•
 
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 T
ra
c
k
in
g
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

•
 
M
o
n
th
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
.  

•
 
L
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 T
e
a
m
. 

  

       P
o
lic
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

J
u
ly
. 

* 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

* 
 S
h
ir
le
y
 

C
a
m
p
b
e
ll-

W
ill
ia
m
s
 a
n
d
 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

* 
  
L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

 

•
 
S
h
ir
le
y
 

C
a
m
p
b
e
ll-

W
ill
ia
m
s
 

a
n
d
 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
.  

•
 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
th
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n

c
y
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

•
 
A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

Page 43



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

   
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 
L
e
s
le
y
 

k
e
tt
le
s
 

•
 
L
e
s
le
y
 

K
e
tt
le
s
 

 

6
. 
 P
ro
m
o
te
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
b
ili
ty
 

b
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
d
o
p
te
rs
, 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
. 
  

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
p
ro
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
d
o
p
te
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 N
o
rt
h
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 T
ra
in
in
g
 C
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
d
u
le
s
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

•
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
a
ll 
a
d
o
p
te
rs
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
m
 

a
b
re
a
s
t 
o
f 
m
e
n
u
 o
f 
C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m
o
d
u
le
s
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ta
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
te
rs
. 
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
a
d
o
p
te
rs
 w
h
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
s
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 

s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
ff
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

In
 p
la
c
e
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

   T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
s
 

e
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
2
0
1
2
 

* 
 C
la
ir
e
 M
o
a
tt
i 

 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
 P
o
s
t 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  * 
  
D
e
p
u
ty
 h
e
a
d
s
 

o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 

a
n
d
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
. 

* 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

a
n
d
 A
n
n
ie
 

W
a
lk
e
r 

7
. 
 T
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

b
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
. 
 

•
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
r.
  

 •
 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 i
s
 M
a
rc
h
, 
2
0
1
3
. 
 

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

* 
 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

  * 
L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

 * 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

8
. 
 T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 o
f 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 C
R
B
, 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 (
in
c
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 44



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 r
o
b
u
s
t.
  

fr
o
m
 f
o
rm

e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 c
h
ild
re
n
),
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
r’
s
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 c
h
e
c
k
s
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
te
s
 a
 c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
d
o
p
te
r 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
a
d
o
p
te
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 c
a
ri
n
g
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
lle
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
d
o
p
te
rs
 

a
re
 m
a
d
e
. 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 a
re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 b
o
o
k
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

 - 
to
 f
o
llo
w
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
o
rk
 (
in
 d
e
p
th
) 
w
h
e
re
 a
n
 a
lle
g
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 
c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
c
a
re
rs
 

- 
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
lle
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

c
le
a
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m

e
t 
o
n
 a
 2
 –
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 –
 f
ro
m
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

T
e
a
m
. 

9
. 
 T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 u
s
e
r 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
u
s
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
o
rm

s
 f
o
r 

p
ro
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
..
  

•
 
A
d
o
p
te
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
rt
y
. 
 

•
 
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
tw
ic
e
 y
e
a
rl
y
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
it
h
 a
d
o
p
te
rs
  
 

•
 
 T
w
ic
e
 y
e
a
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
u
s
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
s
 e
n
d
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 
R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 g
o
 

to
 D
M
G
. 
 

  T
h
is
 w
ill
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
. 

1
0
. 
 T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
lly
. 
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

p
a
rt
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
e
e
r 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 e
le
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 
P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
 T
ra
c
k
in
g
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 R
e
fr
e
s
h
 

•
 
F
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 

C
iC
 a
n
d
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
y
. 

•
 
J
o
in
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
. 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 D
M
G
 b
y
 e
n
d
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

 J
o
in
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
s
 

A
s
 s
ta
te
d
 

 A
ll 
s
ta
ff
. 

 

Page 45



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 1
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
er
v
ic
e 
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t 
P
la
n
 -
 U
p
d
at
e 

1
1
. 
A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
fo
c
u
s
  

 

•
 
In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

•
 
S
ta
ff
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 
A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
S
y
s
te
m
 

•
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

  In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

A
s
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 . T
ra
in
in
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
s
. 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
b
i-
m
o
n
th
ly
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
ff
..
 

 T
w
ic
e
 y
e
a
rl
y
 M
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 

    2
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 

y
e
a
r.
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
. 

 

 L
e
s
le
y
 K
e
tt
le
s
 

      

Page 46



H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
c
o
re
c
a
rd

E
n
g
la

n
d

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

2
0

1
2

L
a
te
s
t

 3
 y
r 
a
v
e

 2
0
0
9
-1
2

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

U
p
d
a
te
 -
 Y
T
D
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
1

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
ild

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
v
in

g
 i
n
 

w
it
h
 i
ts

 a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 f
a
m

ily
, 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 

(d
a
y
s
)

6
2
5

7
1
7

7
3
9

7
4
7

7
3
6

7
8
4

7
1
5

6
7
8

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 f
ro

m
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

to
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 6

7
8
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
. 

In
 t
h
e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

3
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

ill
 d

ro
p
 o

ff
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 (

7
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

(7
1
5
).

 T
h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

ill
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
f 
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 i
s
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

 o
f 
6
3
9
 d

a
y
s
. 
A

s
s
u
m

in
g
 e

q
u
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 e

a
c
h
 

y
e
a
r,

 a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
1
8
 d

a
y
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

.

A
2

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 c

o
u
rt

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 p

la
c
e
 a

 c
h
ild

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
e
c
id

in
g
 o

n
 a

 

m
a
tc

h
 t
o
 a

n
 a

d
o
p
ti
v
e
 f
a
m

ily
 (

d
a
y
s
)

1
7
1

1
3
2

2
3
9

**
**

M
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
is

 r
e
lia

n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 

b
y
 C

A
F

C
A

S
S

.

A
3

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 w

a
it
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 2

1
 m

o
n
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 c

a
re

 

a
n
d
 m

o
v
in

g
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 a

d
o
p
ti
v
e
 f
a
m

ily
 %

 (
N

o
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
)

5
8
%

5
4
%

4
1
%

 (
3
5
)

4
1
%
 (
4
7
)

3
3
%
 (
4
)*

3
1
%
 (
5
)*

5
0
%
 (
7
)*

4
1
%
 (
7
/1
7
)*
*

A
ll 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
la

c
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
",

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

n
ly

. 
In

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
, 
1
7
 c

h
ild

re
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 f
a
m

ily
 (

i.
e
. 
w

e
re

 e
it
h
e
r 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 o

r 

p
la

c
e
d
),

 o
f 
w

h
o
m

 7
 d

id
 s

o
 w

it
h
in

 2
1
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
e
n
te

ri
n
g
 c

a
re

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 4

 c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 

w
e
re

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
o
f 
w

h
o
m

 1
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 f
a
m

ily
 w

it
h
in

 2
1
 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
e
n
te

ri
n
g
 c

a
re

.

T
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 a

d
o
p
t 
(d

a
y
s
)

-
-

-
4
1
7

T
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 t
o
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 a

d
o
p
t 
(d

a
y
s
)

-
-

-
3
1
9

T
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 a

d
o
p
t 
to

 m
a
tc

h
in

g
 

w
it
h
 c

h
ild

 (
d
a
y
s
)

-
-

-

A
4
/C

1
A

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 c

a
re

 (
%

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d
)

1
2
%

8
%

5
%

5
%

5
%

5
%

5
%

6
%

A
5
/C

6
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n

7
%

8
%

6
 c

h
ild

re
n

A
6
/C

3
A

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 (

%
 o

f 

B
M

E
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d
)

7
%

6
%

4
%

4
%

4
%

2
%

4
%

3
%

A
7
/C

5
A

d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

g
e
d
 f
iv

e
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

(%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

g
e
d
 5

 

o
r 

o
v
e
r 

le
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d
)

5
%

3
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

1
%

0
%

A
8

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

 (
d
a
y
s
)

5
2

5
4

5
6

**
**

M
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
is

 r
e
lia

n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 

b
y
 C

A
F

C
A

S
S

.

A
9

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n

4
,2

9
0

1
8

3
5

3
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

d
o
p
te

rs
-

-
-

1
1
0

D
1

N
o
 C

h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r

6
5

5
2

0
5

6
6

5
9
5

5
9

1
6

1
8

5
7

5
5
5
6

D
2

R
a
te

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

5
9

1
1

5
1
2
1

1
2

0
1

2
6

1
1

7
1
1
3

D
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
 

o
rd

e
r

1
0

%
5

%
5
%

5
%

5
%

6
%

2
4
%

O
f 
th

e
 6

3
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
ft
 c

a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
, 
1
2
 l
e
ft
 v

ia
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 

g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 a
n
d
 3

 l
e
ft
 v

ia
 r

e
s
id

e
n
c
e
 o

rd
e
rs

, 
g
iv

in
g
 2

4
%

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

is
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 (
1
2
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

3
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
)

D
4

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
c
e
 o

rd
e
rs

1
6

9
6

0
 

(2
2

%
)

8
0

 (
1

0
%

)
8
9
 (
1
0
%
)

2
6

3
0

3
3

1
9

In
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
, 
th

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 4

 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
1
2
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 3

 r
e
s
id

e
n
c
e
 o

rd
e
rs

D
5

T
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
1

%
1

5
%

1
3
%

1
5

%
1

4
%

1
0

%
1
0
%

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
in

c
e
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r.

D
6

S
a
m

e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
2
 y

e
a
rs

6
7

%
6

5
%

7
2
%

5
5

%
7

1
%

7
0

%
6
9
%

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

.5
 y

e
a
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
o
v
e
r 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

..

* 
A

d
o

p
te

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

 o
n

ly

**
  

a
d

o
p

te
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 p

la
c
e

d

**
**

 D
a

ta
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 C

A
F

C
A

S
S

Section  D
N
o
te
s

2
0
0
8
-1

1

Children

Prospective 

Adoptors 
(from 2014) Related Information

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 T
im
e
 T
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

1
0

0
0

C
h

ild
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 c

a
re

 a
n

d

m
o

v
in

g
 i
n

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 a
d

o
p

ti
v
e

fa
m

ily
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

L
A

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 c

o
u

rt
H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 -
 S

c
o

re
c
a

rd

Page 47



6
3
9

4
2
6

2
1
3

1
2
1

7
3

9
7

4
7

6
7

8

2
3

9

0

2
0

0

4
0

0

6
0

0

8
0

0

1
0

0
0

2
0

0
8

-1
1

2
0

1
0

-1
3

 T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

2
0

1
1

-1
4

 T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

2
0

1
2

-1
5

 T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

2
0

1
3

-1
6

 T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

Days

L
A

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 c

o
u

rt

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 a
 c

h
ild

a
n

d
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 w

it
h

a
d

o
p

ti
v
e

 f
a

m
ily

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
's

 3
 y

e
a

r 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

(2
0

0
8

-1
1

) 
- 

C
h

ild
 e

n
te

ri
n

g

c
a

re
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
in

g
 i
n

 w
it
h

 i
ts

a
d

o
p

ti
v
e

 f
a

m
ily

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
's

 3
 y

e
a

r 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

(2
0

0
8

-1
1

) 
- 

L
A

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g

c
o

u
rt

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 p
la

c
e

 a

c
h

ild
 a

n
d

 m
a

tc
h

in
g

 w
it
h

a
d

o
p

ti
v
e

 f
a

m
ily

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

2
0

0
9

-1
2

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

2
0

0
8

-1
1

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

A
p

r 
- 

J
u

n
 2

0
1

2

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 -
 S

c
o

re
c
a

rd

Page 48



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

Report for: 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel  
27th September 2012 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Fostering Service Report - update 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

Libby Blake Director Children and Young People’s Service 

 

Lead Officer: 
Wendy Tomlinson – Head of Service Commissioning and 
Placements 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: all 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
This report provides a brief description of the aims and duties of the fostering service and 
an analysis of the current challenges. It outlines the strategies in place to address these 
challenges in order to improve outcomes for children and young people in care in foster 
placement. Our target is to achieve the necessary progress and move from an Ofsted 
grading of a satisfactory service to one of good or outstanding service. 
 
2. Background 

 
The fostering service is located within the commissioning and placements service which 
provides a range of foster placements for children in care. The fostering team recruit, 
assess, train and support foster carers including ‘Kinship’ foster carers (these are 
placements where children and young people are placed by the local authority within their 
family network).  
 
The activities of the service are governed by the Fostering Regulations, National Minimum 
Standards 2011 and are inspected by Ofsted. The last Ofsted inspection of the service in 
2011 found the service to be satisfactory.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 49



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

3. Recommendations 
This report is for information and consideration by members. 
 

4. Key issues 
 
4.1     The continuing challenge for fostering services is the recruitment and retention of  
 good quality foster carers. 
  
 The Fostering Network and British Association of Adoption and Fostering produce 
 a range of research related to recruitment in fostering as there is a national 
 shortage of foster carers and all local authorities continue to struggle to recruit 
 sufficient foster carers to meet their demand. 
  
 The Fostering Network and BAAF provide guidance related to the most successful 
 marketing and campaigning strategies, in addition to the service structure and 
 customer service response that supports successful recruitment. Some  of the 
 important factors are: 
 

• Marketing strategies   

• Timely response and information to enquirers i.e. good customer services efficient 
communication and administration processes 

• Packages of support  i.e. payments, face to face and emergency support, training 

• Perceived value the role foster carers as a part of the team involved in promoting 
the child’s wellbeing.  
 

We are competing in a very small market of fostering resources, with neighbouring local 
authorities. We also have two independent agencies on our door step (in Southgate, 
Enfield) plus a number of independent agencies who cast their recruitment nets widely.  
Successful recruitment is based on how well the above factors are delivered and finding 
an edge that makes applicants favour a particular agency. Some independent agencies 
and authorities are able to offer higher allowance payments, two weeks holiday each year, 
provide respite support regularly (sometimes monthly) for carers etc. This type of support 
may attract certain applicants depending on their motivation. Haringey have addressed 
these areas in order to compete in this market, i.e. our allowances to carers is similar to 
allowances paid by some independent agencies and local authorities  
 
Our marketing strategies are similar to other authorities and agencies. Haringey’s 
marketing materials  were ‘highly commended’ at a recent marketing awards event. 
Our packages of support to foster carers have been developed to compete with others as 
far as we are able to within financial constraints. The Haringey ‘edge’ we believe is the 
supportive fostering family feeling that is encouraged by the high profile role our foster 
carers have in recruitment, welcoming new carers into the fold, offering advice and 
guidance and encouraging carers, foster children and carers own children’s  involvement 
in a range of social events.  
 

Page 50



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

The areas for further development are to improve customer services and develop more 
efficient administrative processes.  We are undertaking analysis work on the latter with 
support from our colleagues in Strategy and Business Intelligence.  
 
4.2     Recruitment / Managing Resources 
  
The fostering service is engaged in advertising in partnership with the Corporate Marketing 
and Communications team order to recruit foster carers.  
 
Our marketing strategy is developed based on a gap analysis. We have used our 
knowledge of the population of the borough to gain insight into the characteristics of the 
people most likely to be interested in fostering. We have also analysed performance data 
to assess the effectiveness of marketing activities and to further inform our understanding.  
 
Our marketing performance is monitored monthly and three monthly following specific 
campaigns to evaluate its effectiveness through the number of enquiries generated, and 
the progression of these applicants through the assessment process. 
 
Our performance figures during 2010/2011 suggested that although a large campaign 
during the Fostering Network foster care fortnight may have generated a high number of 
enquires, there were high applicant fall out rates. At these events there is not much 
opportunity to talk to interested people in depth; the leaflets can only provide basic 
information to generate interest.  
 
The team have attended Area Forum meetings to speak to those attending about 
fostering; these activities did not generate any applications.  
 
Our analysis currently is that a ratio of 200 enquires are required to produce 10 approved 
foster carers. Our marketing strategy has been further developed to continue to target all 
the homes in the borough, adverts and articles in the press and Haringey People, in 
addition to a continuous flow of information about fostering produced each month. We 
have used large posters across the borough, with blanket coverage in Wood Green to 
capture the interest of shoppers who live in Haringey and the four neighbouring boroughs. 
 
Last year 2011/2012 there were 318 enquires producing 17 fostering approvals.  
Our target 2010 /2014 is to recruit 48 new foster placements (over the 3 years) to date we 
have recruited 39 and on target for 48. Whilst we have had some success in recruiting 
white UK/ European foster carers this is an area for continued to focus. 
 

• Information sessions for interested enquirers are monthly 

• Initial assessments are  carried out within 2 weeks of information session 

• Preparation groups are available across the consortium monthly( 3 day course) 

• The final assessment should take no longer than 3/4 months to complete, however, 
this is dependent on the complexity of the family and any issues of concern that 
may arise. 

• Fostering panels are held twice each month to ensure approvals are not delayed. 
 

Page 51



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 4.3       North London Fostering Consortium 
 
We continue to develop and maintain our partnerships with the North London Adoption 
and Fostering Consortium (NLAFC) for advertising, pooling of resources and new 
initiatives. The NLAFC website was launched providing joint advertising.  We have 
produced a teenage foster carer recruitment film for information and publicity as a joint 
venture with the consortium, without a collaborative approach this would not have been 
possible. Our ability to work collaboratively means we are able to host events and activities 
that would be unaffordable as a single borough. We share the delivery of prospective 
foster carers training to reduce the waiting time for these courses; prospective carers are 
now able to attend any of the five boroughs preparation groups.  
 
The training mangers from all five boroughs share information about foster carers learning 
and development plans and facilitate foster carers attendance at cross consortium training 
if spaces are available at reduced costs. 
 
We are now in the second year of our Consortium agreement to share foster placement 
resources, as an alternative to commissioning placements with independent fostering 
agencies which can be more costly. Over the last two years Haringey have provided four 
short term placements to the consortium and Haringey have placed seven children with 
foster carers in the consortium.  
 
We are currently in the process of setting up a Remand Fostering Scheme and a parent 
and baby assessment placement scheme in collaboration with our consortium partners. 
This initiative will address our service needs and reduce commissioning costs for these 
specialist resources. 
 
4.4 Retention of Foster care resources 
 
 A review of last year’s data showed a loss of 15 foster carers, some due to personal life 
changes, retirement, or being unsuitable. There is currently a capacity analysis is being 
undertaken to address the need to increase our recruitment targets through existing 
resources  in order to offset the losses as outlined above and below. 
 
Currently there are 16 fostering households who are not active due to having an agreed 
‘rest’ following a challenging placement, having a recovery period due to illness, moving 
house or travelling abroad. There are 3 carers who have chosen to provide supported 
lodgings to the young people in their care in order that they are able to continue to live in 
the fostering household post 18.  There are a further 3 carers considering this option. All of 
these carers will return to fostering at some stage. 
 
There are nine fostering households that are not active due to concerns about standards 
of care provided to children formerly in placement. This ranges from carer’s inappropriate 
management of behaviour, health and safety in the fostering household, or failure to 
comply with the requirements of the fostering regulations. The fostering team will work with 
these carers to improve their practice. Some of these carers will return to our active list 
and a number may be de-registered.  

Page 52



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
4.5  Service Efficiency Review  
 
As part of our business analysis a major review of our service efficiency has been 
undertaken in order to assure that the service is fit for purpose. The recommendations 
have been included in our transitional action planning, this includes rebuilding our Frame 
work –i workflows, addressing staff learning needs, improving management oversight and 
leadership effectiveness.    
 
 
 Key targets for improvement  
 

• To provide  additional foster placements to meet our target of 48 additional 
placements by 31st March 2014   

• To continue to focus on recruitment for sibling groups, White UK carers, Jewish 
carers for short term and long term placements,  carers for babies 0 – 2, teenagers 
and providing placements for more troubled (challenging) children/ young people. 

• To set up a remand foster placement scheme and parent and child assessment 
placements (specialist carers) in partnership with NLFC. 

• To progress plans for the  introduce a carer scheme as we know that word of 
mouth is a successful recruitment strategy, our carers will receive a financial reward 
when one of the people they introduce is approved at the fostering panel.    

• To utilise technology to reach a larger audience for recruitment through the NLAFC 
i.e. set up Fostering Facebook. 

• To urgently complete the review of our service capacity, to ensure that the right 
resources are in place to undertake the tasks required to increase the targets as 
outlined above to offset the loss of resources as outlined. 

• To implement the changes that have been recommended following our service 
efficiency review 

• To speed up the customer facing processes  for improved  efficiency in recruitment, 
assessment  and support to our  foster carers 

• To reduce loss of good carers. 

 

4.6 Overall Service Improvement Planning  
 
A service improvement plan is in place and continues to be developed to address all 31 
fostering minimum standards and local performance indicators. A steering group has been 
set up with members from across the strategic Partnership which includes health, 
education and performance partners to contribute to planning and improvements to ensure 
that we are prepared for short notice inspection.  

 
 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

Report for: Scrutiny Panel 
Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: LAC Placement Summary and Costs 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

  Marion Wheeler, Assistant Director 

 

Lead Officer: Chris Chalmers 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
 

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

The location of and costs for children who are looked after by the local authority.  
 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
 
 The information presented in Section 5 is an analysis of placements for children at 
 the end of July 2012 with costs presented for a three year period, from 2009-12. 
 Both internal and external provision are included in order to give a comparison. 

 
 

3. Recommendations 
 This is for information only 

 
 

4. Other options considered 
 Not applicable 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 55



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 
5. Background information 

 
 LAC Placements, summary of provision and cost  
 
 The following data presents an analysis of placements for children and young people, as 
 of the end of July 2012. Placement locations fall into three broad areas, those placed 
 within Haringey (the majority of whom are in Haringey placements), those placed in close 
 proximity to Haringey and those at a greater distance. Approximately half of LAC children 
 (293 young people) are placed within Haringey or neighbouring boroughs (Barnet, Enfield, 
 Camden, Hackney, Islington and Waltham Forest. Nearly 100 children have placements 
 within other London boroughs. It is interesting to note that very few children are placed in 
 Kent, just 18 are recorded. 
 
 Location of placements is presented in the table below with the breakdown of type of 
 provision in the table following that. 
 
 

Location No: of 
children 
placed in 
Borough 

Aylesbury Vale District 2 

Barking and Dagenham 
London Boro 

3 

Barnet London Boro 24 

Barnsley District (B) 1 

Basildon District (B) 1 

Bedford (B) 3 

Bexley London Boro 10 

Bolton District (B) 1 

Boston District (B) 1 

Brent London Boro 8 

Brighton & Hove 1 

Bromley London Boro 1 

Broxbourne District (B) 3 

Camden London Boro 6 

Cannock Chase District 1 

Castle Point District (B) 4 

Chelmsford District (B) 1 

City of Leicester (B) 1 

City of Southampton (B) 1 

Croydon London Boro 7 

Dartford District (B) 1 

Daventry District 1 

Doncaster District (B) 2 

Dover District 2 

Ealing London Boro 1 

Page 56



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Enfield London Boro 83 

Epping Forest District 12 

Essex 1 

Fareham District (B) 1 

Gravesham District (B) 1 

Greenwich London Boro 3 

Hackney London Boro 17 

Halton (B) 1 

Hammersmith and Fulham 
London Boro 

5 

Haringey London Boro 142 

Harlow District 1 

Harrow London Boro 5 

Hastings District (B) 4 

Havering London Boro 7 

Hillingdon London Boro 5 

Hounslow London Boro 3 

Isle of Wight 1 

Islington London Boro 21 

Kensington and Chelsea 
London Boro 

1 

King's Lynn and West Norfolk 
District (B) 

1 

Lambeth London Boro 1 

Lewisham London Boro 7 

Luton (B) 3 

Maidstone District (B) 1 

Maldon District (B) 1 

Medway (B) 8 

Merton London Boro 2 

Mid Devon District 1 

Mid Suffolk District 1 

Milton Keynes (B) 1 

Missing 4 

Newark and Sherwood District 2 

Newham London Boro 10 

North Norfolk District 2 

North Somerset 2 

Redbridge London Boro 14 

Reigate and Banstead District 
(B) 

4 

Rochford District 1 

Rother District 1 

Runnymede District (B) 1 

Sefton District (B) 1 

Shepway District 2 

Shropshire 1 

South Gloucestershire 2 

Page 57



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

South Lakeland District 1 

South Staffordshire District 3 

Southend-on-Sea (B) 1 

Southwark London Boro 1 

Stevenage District (B) 1 

Stockport District (B) 1 

Sutton London Boro 1 

Swale District (B) 5 

Tandridge District 1 

Telford and Wrekin (B) 1 

Tendring District 5 

Thanet District 6 

The City of Brighton and Hove 
(B) 

1 

Three Rivers District 1 

Thurrock (B) 1 

Tower Hamlets London Boro 3 

Waltham Forest London Boro 26 

Wandsworth 2 

Wellingborough District (B) 1 

West Lancashire District (B) 1 

West Oxfordshire District 3 

West Somerset District 1 

Placed for Adoption 9 

Grand Total 551 

 
 
 Breakdown of both in Haringey provision and external placements 
 
 

Placement Type 

Placed 
in 
Haringey 

Placed 
outside of 
Haringey 

Placement 
address 
not 
provided 

Placed for 
adoption 0 0 9 

Fostered with 
Relative/Friend 20 39 0 

Internal Fostering 56 53 0 

Agency Foster 
Carer 21 235 0 

Secure Unit 0 3 0 

Homes & Hostels 5 30 0 

Residential 
Accommodation 29 15 0 

Missing  - 
whereabouts 
known 0 0 2 

Page 58



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Missing - 
whereabouts 
unknown 0 2 2 

Placed with 
Parents/Guardian 8 4 0 

Living 
independently 
with or without 
support 0 1 0 

NHS or other est. 
Medical/Nursing 
care 0 5 0 

Family 
Centre/M&B unit 3 1 0 

Young Offender 
inst Prison 0 2 0 

Residential 
School 0 6 0 

Total 142 396 13 

 
Placement Costs 
 
The table below summarises expenditure on placements over the last three years. The internal 
fostering figure does not include running costs for the fostering service. The increase in supported 
lodgings can be partly attributed to young people remaining with their foster carers whilst finishing 
education after they become 18 years old. The data provided for the recent position with 
placements denotes 109 internal fostering placements with 256 being external. 
 
 

 Looked after Children – Particularly those placed out of Borough: 

    

  Cost of children going out to care and where to – 3 years figures 
 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

 £ £ £ 

*internal residential homes 2,502,073 1,965,767 1,933,647 

internal fostering 3,326,558 3,346,591 3,628,481 

external fostering  8,425,208 10,151,154 10,905,572 

Residential 4,856,596 6,687,353 5,861,579 

Residential Schools 1,149,105 1,115,481 582,318 

Secure 330,372 185,810 387,536 

**Family Assessment Centre/Mother 
& Baby Unit 

0 0 146,912 

Supported Lodgings 4,691 13,176 44,508 

Independent /Semi Independent 
housing 

941,082 1,804,723 1,180,387 

Gross expenditure 21,535,685 25,270,055 24,670,940 

    

Page 59



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Contributions from health / education 
for children with complex needs 

-928,725 -1,212,688 -725,892 

Net expenditure 20,606,960 24,057,367 23,945,048 

 

Notes:     

We are unable to identify spend geographically - payments are made to a particular company 
for several different placements that could be in several different locations 

*the two internal residential homes have now been shut 

** Mother and baby assessment centre costs were not identified separately in previous years 
accounts 

 
 

6. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
 Placement choice is essential in order to meet the wide range of needs within 
 Haringey’s looked after children population. Some external placements will be 
 inevitable in order to maintain this choice. However the extent to which these are 
 used will vary according to availability locally within Haringey’s own resources.   

 
 
 

Page 60



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Report for: 
Children and Young 
Peoples Scrutiny Panel 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Early Intervention – Early Help 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
Libby Blake, Director CYPS 

 

Lead Officer: Iain Low  -  Programme Manager Haringey 54,000 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
  

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

 The delivery of early intervention and preventative services in Haringey will be 
delivered through our Early Help Offer. 

 
 Haringey 54,000 is the Children and Young People’s Department’s transformational 

change programme that will create a changing relationship with the Borough’s 
families. The programme will shift the focus towards universal and good and 
outstanding early help that will sustain families preventing the need for more costly 
services arising. 
 
In Haringey, we believe Early Help is:- 
 
Intervening early and as soon as possible to assist in finding solutions to emerging 
issues for children, young people and their families or with a population most at risk 
of poor outcomes. Effective intervention may occur at any point in a child or young 
person’s life. 
 
This definition includes both interventions early in life (with young children, including 
pre�natal interventions) and interventions early in the development of issues (with 
children or young people of any age). 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 61



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

2. Background information 
 

 During the past 18 months, there have been a range of reports and studies on early 
intervention. Government-sponsored reports include the Marmot Review on Health 
inequalities1, Grasping the Nettle: Early intervention for children, Families and 
Communities2, Dame Clare Tickell’s report on the Early Years Foundation Stage 3 and 
Allen’s Early Intervention: The Next Steps.4 

 

These reports have been consistent in their findings and recommendations, and 
recommend the following elements: 
 
A commitment to prevention 
 

o Priority focus on the early years, ensuring continuity into school 
o Continuing early intervention in later years 
o A multi-agency systems approach 
o High quality of workforce 
o Investment in programmes that work and supporting innovative working with 

children, young people and families 
 
 The Munro review of child protection identifies the provision of early help to 
 families as being crucial in building resilience, improving outcomes for children 
 (including educational attainment) and preventing more serious concerns  for 
 children and young people at later stages.  
  
 Munro has three key messages regarding the implementation of Early Help:- 
  

• Preventative services will do more to reduce abuse and neglect than reactive 
services 

• Co-ordination of services is important to maximise efficiency and avoid 
duplication and 

• Within Early Help there needs to be good mechanisms to identify children and 
young people who are at risk of or who have suffered significant harm and need 
a service from Children’s Social Care. 

 
 The work of the Social Work Reform Board (SWRB) is complementary to Munro’s 
 recommendations and has worked with partners in the children’s social care 
 sector, drawing on feedback on draft proposals, evidence from test sites and the 
 recommendations of the Munro Review, and will develop tools that will be of 
 practical help on the ground, and together bring about improvements to the whole 
 system. 
 

                                                 
1
 Marmot M, Fair Society, Healthy Lives: Strategic Review of health inequalities in England post-2010, London: The 
Marmot Review, 2010 
2
 C4EO, Grasping the Nettle: early intervention for children, families and communities, London, 2010 
3
 Tickell C, The Early Years: Foundations for life, health and learning, London: The Stationery Office, 2011 
4
 Allen G, Early Intervention: The Next Steps, London: The Stationery Office, 2011 

Page 62



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

3. Current Haringey position: 
 
 The Haringey 54,000 Programme will deliver Haringey’s multi-agency Early Help 
 Offer; ensuring families can access the right services from the right settings at the 
 right time, as well as a new approach to working with families with complex needs.  
 

Haringey 54,000 will focus on the strengths of our families and promote a strengths 
perspective in working with families in difficulty whilst safeguarding children when 
they need it.  
 
Practice will include a focus on successful, rather than problematic behaviours as a 
powerful lever for promoting change, enabling families to find solutions and work 
with agencies to agree on strategies and solutions to improve the life chances of 
their children. 
 
In Haringey we currently deliver a range of Early Help services including: 
 

• Children’s Centres 

• Accessing Health Services: Health Visiting and Midwifery Services 

• Speech and Language Therapy 

• Language Support Groups 

• Advice and Information 

• Outreach and Early Intervention Service 
 

• Youth, Participation and Community Teams 

• Inclusion Service 

• Evidence based Parenting Programmes 

• DfE funded Multi-systemic Programme aimed at young people at risk of 
becoming looked after or entering the criminal justice system. 

• Family Action: Building Bridges Project 

• Increased resources or our Family Group Conferencing Service 

• In partnership with Whittington Health the Family Nurse Practitioner Programme 

• Barnardo’s Mis U Project for young people at risk of running away from home 
 
Early Help consultation events with managers and front line practitioners from a 
range of agencies have started to ensure we build on ‘what works’ and identify good 
practice across services. A programme of events to ensure the Programme 
captures the views and experiences of children, young people and their parents is 
being planned. 
 
The Programme will work with services to create referral pathway arrangements 
that make sense and avoid duplication to allow families to access Early Help. 
 
For families in Haringey with more complex needs, our Troubled Families Initiative 
(TFI) will look at different ways of engaging with them. Government’s aim is for 
Local Authorities to turn around the lives of troubled families who are out of work, 
out of school, involved in criminal behaviour or anti-social behaviour. 

Page 63



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Haringey’s TFI strategy is to use an approach that builds on current successful 
practice and services to address the local need of our troubled families whilst 
ensuring that we are able to take full advantage of the payments by results funding 
available under the Troubled Families Initiative. 
 

4. Early Help priorities 
  
The Haringey 54,000 programme will drive through the changes to enable Haringey 
to deliver a multi-agency Early Help offer to residents:- 
 
Priorities for action: 
 

• Ensure the effective engagement with children, young people and families in 
the planning of Early Help. 

 

• Deliver and implement a fully integrated referral pathway for ‘Early Help’ that 
avoids duplication and makes sense to families. 

 

• Review the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) in the context of our 
Early Help offer.  

 

• Ensure Early Help is understood and actively supported across all Council 
departments. 

 

• Ensure our Early Help complements and supports the range of other 
programmes within the Council and led by partner agencies to support 
children, young people and their families.  

 
5. Recommendations 

 
Scrutiny is asked to note the contents of this report and consider a detailed report 
on the Haringey 54,000 Programme at a later date. 
 

Page 64



 

Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel 
 
Draft Work Plan 

 
11th December 
 
1.  Budget: 

Focus on; 

• Fostering and adoption 

• Youth unemployment and youth services 
 
2.  School Standards:  

• Exam results 

• Primaries; key stage stats for each school over last 5 years 

• Secondaries; Table showing results for each school over last 5 years and 
numbers for each school going onto higher education and where 

 
3. School Improvement Service: 

• What is happening to service 

• How stable is the officer core 

• Has the service been providing to schools what it should be doing  

• Use of warning notices 
 
4. Looked after Children and Safeguarding:  

• Response to Munro Report 

• Training of social workers 
 
5. Work Plan 
 
21st January  

 
1. Budget – conclusion  

 
2. Work Plan 
 
21st March 
 
1. Cabinet Question Time  

 
2. Youth Offending  

 
3. Looked after Children and Safeguarding 

 
4. Move of Children's Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee and the 

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee to the CYP Scrutiny Panel 
 

5. The future structure of schooling – Education commission report response 
 

6. Work Plan 

Agenda Item 13Page 65



 

 
Ongoing Theme/Project 
 
School places or school standards 
 

Page 66


	Agenda
	5 Terms of Reference
	7 Budget Monitoring
	8 School Places
	Reception 2012 - applications&offers Appendix 1
	Primary waiting lists  - appendix 4
	Secondary application and offers Appendix 5

	9 Adoption Service - Update
	adoption Service plan update sept 2012 (2)
	Scorecard _ Table 2011_12 JUNE

	10 Fostering Service - Update
	11 Looked After Children
	12 Early Intervention:
	13 Work Plan

